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Corporate Information

NAEEH
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executive

EERERITBRAEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KONG, Chi-ming, aged 48, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since July 2005 and was appointed as Deputy Chairman of
the Company in November of the same year. He also holds position as
director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kong holds a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a Master Degree of Arts in Quantitative Analysis for
Business and a Master Degree of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has over 21 years of experience in the
management and development of property projects in the mainland
China.

Mr. LEUNG, Wing-pong, aged 50, has been an Executive Director of
the Company since October 2002 and was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in July 2005. He also holds position as director
and secretary in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Leung is a
member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. He was registered with the
Securities and Futures Commission as a responsible officer of a securities
firm, a futures firm and a finance firm in Hong Kong. He has over 24 years
of experience in the area of internal audit.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. David CHAIN, Chi-woo, aged 63, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2004. He is also
a member of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. He has been appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company effective from April 2012. Dr. Chain is a
registered medical practitioner and started private practice since 1978. He
is a graduate of The University of Hong Kong. Dr. Chain was appointed
as a vice chairman of Causeway Bay District Scout Council from 1986
to 1992. He was also a member of Kowloon West District Advisory
Committee of The Hongkong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme from 2000 to 2001.

Mr. LAM, Yat-fai, aged 46, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since December 2003. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. He has been appointed as a member of the nomination
committee of the Company effective from April 2012. Mr. Lam is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising). He is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lam
worked with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for
over 10 years. He has over 22 years of experience in auditing, taxation,
corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Lam is also an independent non-
executive director of Oriental Press Group Limited and Tianda Holdings
Limited (formerly known as “Yunnan Enterprises Holdings Limited"), the
shares of all of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Executive
EERESRITHRAEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(cont'd)

Mr. LEUNG, Yun-fai, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 2003. He is also the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee of
the Company. He has been appointed as a member of the nomination
committee of the Company effective from April 2012. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from Newport University in
the United States of America. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute. He has over 20 years of auditing and accounting
experience with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
Mr. Leung is also an independent non-executive director of China
Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc., the shares of which are listed on the

Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board of the United States of America.

SENIOR EXECUTIVE

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 56, joined the Company in 2003 and is the
Group Financial Controller and the Company Secretary of the Company,
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (the holding company of the Company)
and Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited (a fellow subsidiary of
the Company). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong. He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. Mr. Lam has over 34 years of

experience in auditing, finance and accounting.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF INFORMATION
OF DIRECTORS UNDER RULES 13.51(2) AND
13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

In March 2012, Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo, Mr. Lam, Yat-fai and Mr. Leung,
Yun-fai, being the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
have been appointed as members of the nomination committee of the
Company with Dr. Chain appointed as the chairman of such committee
effective on 1 April 2012.

Save those changes mentioned above and in the Profiles of Directors,
there is no change of information of each director that is required to be
disclosed under Rules 13.51(2) and 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,

since publication of the 2011 interim report of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

I am pleased to present the results of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (the "Year") to the shareholders of the
Company.

RESULTS

For the Year, profit attributable to owners of the Company surged to
HK$13,094,000 (2010: loss of HK$1,859,000) which was mainly due
to the increase in fair value of investment properties and exchange gain
upon conversion of cash, received upon maturity of EUR denominated
floating rate notes (“FRN"), in foreign currency into Hong Kong dollars.
The basic and diluted earnings per share for the Year are HK0.54 cents
(2010: loss per share of HKO0.08 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board") has recommended
the payment of final dividend of HKO.1 cent per share for the Year (2010:
HKO.2 cents). Subject to the shareholders' approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 25 May 2012 (the
“"AGM"), the recommended final dividend will be paid on or around 13
June 2012 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company on 1 June 2012.

Taken together with the interim dividend of HKO.1 cent per share paid
on 28 September 2011, this will make a total dividend for the full year of
HKO.2 cents per share in 2011 (2010: HKO.2 cents).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 May 2012
to 25 May 2012, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all share transfers documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's Branch
Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Secretaries
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFEHRESE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (contd)

The recommended final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the AGM. The record date for the recommended final
dividend is at the close of business on 1 June 2012. For determining the
entitlement to the recommended final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from 31 May 2012 to 1 June 2012, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify for the recommended final dividend, all
share transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office
in Hong Kong, namely Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on 30 May 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group was mainly engaged in the businesses of

investment and finance, and property investment.

Investment and Finance

During the Year, a total sum of HK$200,000,000 advanced to the Chinese
Estates Group (“CE Group”) at the annual interest rate of HIBOR plus 1%
under the three-year revolving loan facility agreement made in November
2008 expired on 3 November 2011
facility up to HK$300,000,000 at the annual interest rate of HIBOR plus

. A new three-year revolving loan

1.5% was lent to the CE Group on 3 November 2011 upon receiving the

approval from the independent shareholders of the Company.

At the end of the Year, the Company accrued an interest income in the
sum of approximately HK$2,843,000 from the aforesaid revolving loans,
in comparison with HK$2,354,000 last year.

On the other hand, the investment in various FRN for long-term
investment purpose in EUR and USD denominated principal contributed
an interest income of approximately HK$3,803,000 for the Year,
comparing HK$4,434,000 last year. Certain FRN in the principal sum
of EUR3,800,000 and US$6,000,000 expired during the Year and the
conversion of EUR into HK dollars upon maturity of EUR denominated

FRN has substantially contributed to the exchange gain for the Year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEBREE

BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Property Investment

As at 31 December 2011, the Group held 31 car parking spaces with 5
adjoining spaces and a carport basement situated in Wanchai and Central.
The relevant occupancy rate was approximately 80.04% with rental
income amounted to about HK$ 1,764,000 for the Year. The rental income
represented an increment of 4.1% as compared to last year. Besides,
an unrealised fair value gains on investment properties in the amount of

HK$3,800,000 was recorded during the Year.

PROSPECTS

The sovereignty debts problems in certain European countries spread
like fire and triggered off chain effect on the economy of other countries
in the world. The risk of economic recession is getting higher and Hong
Kong as an export-oriented economy cannot be relieved from adverse
effect in this trend. The United States (“US") economy has not shown
substantial recovery since the global financial turmoil in 2008. The interest
rate remains at a very low level in Hong Kong inter-banking industry.
The Company, however, has bargained for a better interest rate return
from the CE Group, notwithstanding the prevailing uncertain economic
climate. It is believed that the interest on loan to the CE Group would be
steady to bring income to the Group. For US dollars denominated FRN,
they would remain stable in light of the recent slight improvement in US
economy. The revenue from the car parking spaces letting is believed to
be stable in future. The Company strives to maintain a prudent but flexible
business model in the getting harsh business environment. Meanwhile,
the Company will continue to take a conservative and cautious stand to

face the future business and economic challenges.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to the
shareholders of the Company for their continued support, and our fellow
Directors and those who have worked for the Group for their valuable

contribution.

On behalf of the Board
Kong, Chi-ming
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2012
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Financial Operation Review

B 7% 48 & Ol R

RESULTS

Revenue for the Year was HK$8,410,000 (2010: HK$8,483,000), a
slight decrease of HK$73,000 when compared with last year. Gross
profit for the Year amounted to HK$8,248,000 (2010: HK$8,279,000),
a decrease of HK$31,000 as compared with last year. Interest income
generated from floating rate notes (“FRN") and loan to a fellow subsidiary
was HK$3,803,000 (2010: HK$4,434,000) and HK$2,843,000 (2010:
HK$2,354,000) respectively.

For property leasing, rental income for the Year amounted to
HK$1,764,000 (2010: HK$1,695,000). An increase in fair value of
investment properties of HK$3,800,000 was recorded in the Year
compare with a decrease of HK$4,150,000 in 2010.

Exchange gain included in other income of HK$2,658,000 (2010:
exchange loss of HK$2,451,000 included in administrative expenses)
was mainly due to the conversion of cash, received upon maturity of EUR
denominated FRN, in foreign currency into Hong Kong dollars.

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

For the Year, profit attributable to owners of the Company surged to
HK$13,094,000 (2010: loss of HK$1,859,000) which was mainly due
to the increase in fair value of investment properties and exchange gain
upon conversion of cash, received upon maturity of EUR denominated
FRN, in foreign currency into Hong Kong dollars. The basic and diluted
earnings per share for the Year are HK0.54 cents (2010: loss per share of
HKO0.08 cents).

CORE PROFIT

The major non-cash item for the Year was the increase in fair value
of investment properties of HK$3,800,000 (2010: decrease of
HK$4,150,000). The core profit attributable to owners of the Company
will drop to HK$9,294,000 (2010: turn around to profit of HK$2,291,000)
when the major non-cash item is excluded.

NET ASSET VALUE

At 31 December 2011, the Group's total net asset attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$487,536,000 (2010: HK$485,952,000),
showing an increase of HK$1,584,000 or 0.3% compared with
last year. The increase comprises the profit retained for the Year of
HK$13,094,000, decrease of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
of HK$4,225,000 and payment of dividends of HK$7,285,000.

Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
December 2011 was HK20.08 cents (2010: HK20.01 cents).
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Financial Operation Review
B 75 A% % B R

INVESTMENT AND FINANCE

Certain long term FRN matured during the Year. At 31 December 2011,
the FRN retained and recorded under available-for-sale financial assets
are in principal amount of US$10,500,000 with maturity dates in 2012
and 2014. The interest rates are calculated with reference to the LIBOR.
The three-year revolving loan to Chinese Estates Group (“CE Group") of
HK$200,000,000 per agreement made in 2008 expired during the Year.
A new three-year revolving loan facility up to HK$300,000,000 at HIBOR
plus 1.5% per annum was lent to the CE Group on 3 November 2011.
No hedging for interest rate and foreign currency were subsisted during
the Year.

At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of the FRN amounted to
HK$76,886,000 (2010: HK$164,708,000), and the loan amounted to
HK$300,000,000 (2010: HK$200,000,000) representing 15.7% and

61.4% of the total assets of the Group respectively.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2011 and
2010 were 2,428,255,008.

DEBT AND EQUITY RATIO

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

The Group continued to maintain a sound capital and cash position. Time
deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2011 was approximately
HK$75,650,000 (2010: HK$91,242,000). The majority of the Group's
income for the Year was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars and no hedging for non-Hong Kong dollars assets or

investments had been made during the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, no assets were pledged by the
Group to secure any banking facilities and the Group did not have any

obligations under banking facility documentation.
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Financial Operation Review
B 75 AR & B B

CAPITAL COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material capital commitment and contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue and other income for the Year.
Interest income was HK$7,225,000 (2010: HK$6,881,000), representing
an increase of 5% from last year. It was mainly due to the increase in
interest income from time deposits and loan to CE Group for the Year.

There was no finance cost (2010: Nil) during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

At 31 December 2011, the Group did not employ any staff (2010: Nil).
The total staff cost excluding directors’ emoluments for the Year was
approximately HK$1,041,000 (2010: HK$939,000) representing the
staff cost recharged from other fellow subsidiaries of the Company. The
Company had adopted share option scheme since 15 February 2002. No
option was outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Year. No
option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Year. The

said scheme expired on 14 February 2012.

PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation has been carried out by B.I. Appraisals Limited (“B.I.
Appraisals”), independent qualified professional valuers, in respect of the
Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2011 and it was used
in preparing 2011 final results. Property valuation as at 31 December
2010 was also carried out by B.I. Appraisals. The valuation was based on
either direct comparison approach assuming each of these properties
is capable of being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant markets, or investment method by taking into
account the current passing rents and the reversionary income potential of

such properties.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$32,150,000 as at
31 December 2011 (2010: HK$28,350,000), an increase in fair value
of HK$3,800,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERARES

OBJECTIVE

The Board of Directors (the “Directors” or the “Board") of the Company
together with its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance so as to ensure high
transparency and protection of shareholders’ interests in general. The
Board endeavours to ensure effective self-regulatory practices, to maintain
sound internal control system and to absorb high calibre members to the
Board.

The purpose of this Corporate Governance Report is to present to
shareholders how the Company has applied the principles in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code") under Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2011 (the

“Year").

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for directing the Group, formulating overall
strategy, monitoring operating and financial performance of the Group
and overseeing the performance of the management. Each Director acts
in good faith for the best interest of the Company. The Directors are
collectively and individually responsible to the Company for the manner in
which the affairs of the Company are managed, controlled and operated.
They had devoted sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs

during the Year.

Structure

The Board currently comprises two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)"). The INEDs
represent more than one-third of the Board. The members of the Board

are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Kong, Chi-ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Leung, Wing-pong (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Structure (cont'd)

The Directors’ biographies are available on the Company’s website. There
is no relationship among members of the Board and in particular, between
the Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ").

At least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification as
required by the Stock Exchange. The Company has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are

independent.

Directors (including the INEDs) are not appointed for any specific term.

According to The International Tak Cheung Holdings Limited Act 1991
(the "Private Act’, whereas “International Tak Cheung Holdings Limited"
is the former name of the Company) under which the Company was
exempted from certain compliances with the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (the "Bermuda Companies Act"), the Directors shall not be
required to be elected at each annual general meeting, but shall (save
for any chairman and managing director) be subject to retirement by
rotation in such manner and at such frequency as the Bye-laws may
provide. Notwithstanding that no retirement by rotation is required for the
managing director under the Private Act or the Bermuda Companies Act,
Mr. Leung, Wing-pong, as the CEO is willing to voluntarily retire from his
directorship at annual general meetings of the Company at least once
every three years by following the Bye-laws of the Company concerning
the directors’ retirement by rotation, and being eligible, will offer himself

for re-election at the relevant annual general meetings.

Every Director is therefore subject to retirement by rotation either under
the Bye-laws or voluntarily, and eligible for re-election at the annual

general meetings of the Company at least once every three years.

Assistance to Directors in Decision Making

Throughout their period in office, the Directors have been informed
of the Group's business, the competitive and regulatory environments
in which it operates and other changes affecting the Group and the
industry it operates in as a whole. They have also been advised on
appointment of their legal and other duties and obligations as directors of
a listed company and updated on changes to the legal and governance

requirements of the Group and upon themselves as the Directors.

The Directors are given access to independent professional advice at the
Company's expense, when they deem it is necessary in order for them to

carry out their responsibilities from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Assistance to Directors in Decision Making (cont'd)

To enhance the Directors’ consciousness on the importance of the
directors’ duties under common law (which is also generally applicable
to Bermuda where the Company was incorporated) and to comply with
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong
Kong), a “Guide on Directors’ Duties” in which the general principles a
director should follow in the performance of his functions and exercise of

his powers was distributed to the Directors.

Conduct of Meetings

The Directors are consulted and properly briefed for matters to be
included in the meetings’ agenda. The Board is supplied with relevant
information as well as reports relating to operational and financial
performance of the Group before each regular Board meeting. At least 14
days' notice of a regular Board meeting is given to all Directors to provide
them with the opportunity to attend the meeting. Board papers are
dispatched to all Directors at least 3 days before the meeting to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review the papers and will be adequately
prepared for the meeting. Senior management is invited to attend the
meeting to address to the Board members’ queries. This enables the
Board to have pertinent data and insight for reaching a comprehensive

and informed evaluation as part of the Board's decision-making process.

The Deputy Chairman has delegated the responsibility to the secretary of
the Company (the “"Company Secretary”) for drawing up and approving
the meeting's agenda for each Board meeting, taking into account of any

matter proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally monitored
by the Deputy Chairman who would ensure that sufficient time is
allocated for discussion and consideration of each item on the agenda.
Equal opportunities are given to each Director to express his views and

concerns.

Each Director has to declare his interest and to abstain from voting on
any board resolution in which he or any of his associates has a material

interest pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws and the laws of Bermuda.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)

All Directors have full access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure the Board's procedures, rules and regulations are
followed. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting in
sufficient details are sent to the Directors for comments and records
within reasonable time after the meeting is held. The minutes of Board
meetings and of the Board committees’ meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary, which are open for inspection by the Directors on

reasonable notice.

Four regular Board meetings were held on 17 March, 15 July, 11 August
and 6 December for the Year. The Company Secretary and the Company's
senior management had attended the Board meetings to report
matters arising from corporate governance, risk management, statutory

compliance, accounting, finance and business.
Individual attendance of each Director at the meetings is as follows:

No. of Board meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Directors attendance in total)
Executive Directors
Mr. Kong, Chi-ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Leung, Wing-pong (CEO)

4/4 (100%)
4/4 (100%)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

4/4 (100%)
4/4 (100%)
4/4 (100%)

Works Performed

During the Year, besides attending the Board meetings to consider and
make decision on corporate governance, risk management, statutory
compliance, accounting, finance and business matters, the Directors had
brought independent opinion and judgment on the Company's strategy,
performance and standards of conduct; had taken the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arose; had served on Board committees;
had ensured that the Board maintained high standards of financial and
other mandatory reporting; had carried out reviews on matters reported by
the Board committees, and had provided adequate checks and balance to
safeguard the interests of shareholders in general and the Company as a

whole.
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TERERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (contd)

Works Performed (cont'd)
During the Year, the INEDs had actively participated in the Board
meetings, brought independent judgment and given their comments to

the information or reports submitted to the meetings.

Besides holding the Board or committees’ meetings, in order to make
timely decision and ensure effective implementation of the Company's
policy and practice, the Board had also adopted written resolutions signed
by all Directors for making decisions on corporate affairs from time to

time.

As part of the continuing process on supervising the Company's affairs,
the Directors, acting through by the Audit Committee, had reviewed the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the Company's
accounting staff and financial reporting function (which is being performed
by the accounting staff of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese
Estates”), the holding company), and their training programmes and
budget in December 2011.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code") as a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors. In addition, the Company has a separate written
code of conduct on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for the
relevant employees of the Company who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information in respect of their dealings in the

securities of the Company (the “Employees’ Code").

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors and the relevant employees
(viz,, the senior executives of Chinese Estates Group (“CE Group")), all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and the relevant employees had complied with the

Employees’ Code regarding securities transaction throughout the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and CEO are separate and not performed by
the same individual. Mr. Kong, Chi-ming is the Deputy Chairman with
responsibility for overseeing the function of the Board, formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Mr. Leung, Wing-pong is the CEO
with responsibility for the overall business and operation of the Group.
This segregation is clearly established and set out in writing to ensure a
clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the

Board and CEO's responsibility to manage the Group's business.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee with defined roles and terms of reference. A Nomination
Committee has also been established and will commence functioning on
1 April 2012.

Audit Committee

Structure

The Audit Committee has been established with the role to assist the
Board in establishing formal and transparent arrangements for considering
how it will apply the financial reporting and the internal control principles
and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company's
auditors (the “Independent Auditors”). It acts in an advisory capacity and
makes recommendations to the Board.

All the Audit Committee members possess diversified industry experience.
The Audit Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai (Chairman)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

Function
The Audit Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the Group's
website.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are summarised below:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Company's Independent
Auditors, review and monitor their independence and objectivity as
well as the effectiveness of the audit process;

(i)  to monitor the integrity of the interim and annual consolidated
financial statements, reports and accounts and quarterly reports (if
applicable) of the Company, and to review any significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them; and

(i) to review and ensure the effectiveness of the Company's financial
control, internal control and risk management systems.

Conduct of Meetings

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice each year. The Company
prepares and delivers an information memorandum that includes
all relevant information about the meetings to the Audit Committee
members at least 3 days prior to such meetings. During the Year, the Audit
Committee members reviewed the information memorandum with due
care and discussed with the Group Financial Controller (who is also the
Company Secretary) and other senior management (if necessary) during
the meetings.
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TERERRES

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings (cont'd)

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings on 10 March, 9
August and 6 December 2011 with the presence of the Company's senior
management. Minutes drafted by the Company Secretary were circulated
to the Audit Committee members for comments within a reasonable
time after each meeting. Executed minutes were kept by the Company
Secretary and copies of the minutes were sent to the Audit Committee

members for records.

Individual attendance of each committee member at the meetings is as

follows:
No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Members attendance in total)

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai (Chairman)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)
3/3 (100%)

Works Performed
The works performed by the members of Audit Committee in the Year are

summarised below:

(i) reviewed and considered the Group accounts and financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, and interim

accounts for 2011;

(i)  reviewed, discussed and agreed with the Independent Auditors
in respect of the audit fee for the year 2011; the terms of the
engagement letters; the nature, scope of audit and reporting

obligations for the Year;

(i) reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's financial reporting and controls, internal control procedures

and risk management systems;

(iv) reviewed the corporate governance practices and monitored the

progress of compliance of the Code;
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Works Performed (cont'd)

(v) carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions
of the Company (including those fallen outside Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules and not required to be made public, if any) and their

financial implication in their capacity as INEDs;

(vi) reviewed the overall performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010;

(vii) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of the staff in accounting and financial reporting function, and the

training programmes and budget;

(viii) in their capacity as members of independent board committee,
gave an independent advice to the independent shareholders of the
Company in respect of a new revolving loan facility up to HK$300

million from the Company to the CE Group; and

(ix) prepared and submitted to the Board an Audit Committee Report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during the
Year, presented its findings and made recommendations for the

Board's consideration.

On 6 March 2012, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group's accounts

and draft financial statements for the Year.

Overall, the Audit Committee is satisfied with the condition of the
Company, including the corporate governance practices, internal control
system, the conduct of the continuing connected transactions and
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of the staff in
accounting and financial reporting function (which is being performed by
the accounting staff of Chinese Estates, the holding company), and the

training programmes and budget.

In light of the recent amendments to the Listing Rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Board had on 9 March 2012 approved the amendments
of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee which will become
effective on 1 April 2012. Details of the works performed by the Audit
Committee to comply with the new requirements under the Listing Rules
will be given in the corporate governance report for the financial year
ending 31 December 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee

Structure

The Remuneration Committee has been established with the role to assist
the Board in reviewing and determining the framework or broad policy
for remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management,
overseeing any major changes in employee benefit structures and

considering other topics as defined by the Board.
The Remuneration Committee comprises all INEDs, namely:

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai (Chairman)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Function

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are summarised below:

(i) to set, review and make recommendations to the Board for

approving the Group's overall remuneration policy and strategy;

(i) to set, review and approve performance-based remuneration and
individual remuneration packages for the Executive Directors and
senior management including terms and conditions of employment
as well as compensation payable due to loss or termination of

office, and dismissal or removal for misconduct; and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of

Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference can be found on the

Group's website.

The Remuneration Committee would consult the Deputy Chairman and/
or the CEO about its proposals on remuneration of other Executive
Directors and seek internal and external professional advices if considered

necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERREE

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

Conduct of Meetings
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 15 July
2011 to consider and approve the annual remuneration of the Executive

Directors for the Year.

Individual attendance of each committee member at the meeting is as

follows:
No. of meetings
attended/held
(Percentage of
Members attendance in total)

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai (Chairman)
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo
Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

1/1 (100%)
1/1 (100%)
1/1 (100%)

The Company prepares and delivers meeting papers that include all
relevant information about the meeting to the Remuneration Committee
members at least 3 days prior to such meeting. Minutes drafted by the
Company Secretary were circulated to the Remuneration Committee
members for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting.
Executed minutes were kept by the Company Secretary and copies of the

minutes were sent to the Remuneration Committee members for records.

Remuneration Policy

As the existing Executive Directors are employees of the subsidiaries of
Chinese Estates, the Company's holding company, so they are not entitled
to any emoluments of the Company but a nominal annual remuneration
of HK$10,000 approved by the Remuneration Committee as a reward for

their contribution to the Group.

The INEDs are not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office
as the INEDs except for their entittement of an annual remuneration of
HK$150,000 determined by the Board subject to annual review with
reference to their duties and responsibilities as well as the prevailing

market condition.

FEERTEES ™

ERZET
FRN - FMEEER T ——FHATHAHET
SHEUBBEMMERFERNTEET ZFEH

EEEBENERZERZHEERNT
HE BT
=1 G
4= (HER)
REBRE (FE) 1/1 (100%)
RE R 1/1 (100%)
MBEEEA 1/1 (100%)

ARAmE SR EEZ W%“%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
FZHEAER RZemRgiRL —HER

%ﬁ@ﬂ%%ﬁﬁks\0"577%;%%&9’]@3%.:6%5 A
BREFR - BRAERBARTHEMNZESK

BEMEETER KBEEBEZQRCHARAMW

ERFE FHAATERARFMEZESKE NUIE
FCE% ©
B BUR

HRBARZHUTEETRARRZERAFEE

MBARIZER MEETSEBARMEMH
B MR B et EEEREAE10,000
BLZME ERAREEAREZERMMNER-

B EMITEEZREFEZH150,000/% T2 Bl
SN 00 B BEHE B L IEBNTTE S U el B fh Er
Me-BRGcEREFELERS I BBHEEMT
AR B R R m & F e et e

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA

21



22

Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

Remuneration Policy (cont'd)

The Company has adopted a share option scheme since 2002 in order
to attract, retain and motivate talented and recognized staff, management
and directors of the Group. There were no outstanding options at the
beginning and at the end of the Year and no options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Year. The said scheme expired
on 14 February 2012.

In light of the recent amendments to the Listing Rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Board had on 9 March 2012 approved the amendments
of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee which will
become effective on 1 April 2012. Details of the works performed by the
Remuneration Committee to comply with the new requirements under
the Listing Rules will be given in the corporate governance report for the
financial year ending 31 December 2012.

Nomination Committee

No Nomination Committee was established in view of the business
requirement of the Group for the Year. During the Year, the Board was
responsible for reviewing its composition, identifying and selecting suitable
Board members, assessing independence of the INEDs, considering
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors. The Board will exercise its power under Bye-law 86(2)
of the Bye-laws of the Company to appoint any person as a director either
to fill as casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board whenever the

business of the Company requires.

In light of the recent amendments to the Listing Rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Board had on 9 March 2012 approved the establishment
of the Nomination Committee which will start functioning on 1 April 2012
with its members constituted by all the INEDs. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee was also adopted which will become effective
on 1 April 2012. Details of the works performed by the Nomination
Committee to comply with the new requirements under the Listing Rules
will be given in the corporate governance report for the financial year
ending 31 December 2012.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Executive Directors have defined clear directions on powers of
management and delegate daily management and administration
functions to the management. The functions reserved to the Board and
those delegated to the senior management are reviewed from time to
time. The Company would formalize the division of responsibility between
the Board and the management when the operational requirement of the
Group justifies such division.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng (“HLB") were re-appointed as the
Independent Auditors by shareholders at the 2011 annual general
meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2011 (the “2011 AGM"). In
order to maintain the independence and objectivity of the Independent
Auditors (which for these purposes include any entity under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all relevant
information would reasonably conclude as part of the audit firm nationally
or internationally), they will not be engaged for non-audit work unless
it has been pre-approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to the
Company's non-audit services policy.

Independent Auditors were engaged on an ad hoc basis to provide non-
audit service, such as to provide a confirmation letter to the Board and the
Stock Exchange to confirm, among others, that the continuing connected
transactions have not exceeded the stipulated cap for the transactions,
as part of the process for the annual review of the transactions as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year. The fundamental policy
is to ensure that the engagement of the Independent Auditors for non-
audit service will not harm their independence or cause any bias on
audit works for the presentation of financial statements of the Company.
During the Year, the fee for engaging Independent Auditors to carry out
works in connection with the annual review of the continuing connected
transactions amounted to HK$20,000.

At the 2011 AGM, HLB were re-appointed by the shareholders as the
Independent Auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee reviewed the
terms of engagement letters of Independent Auditors in early December
2011 and agreed with HLB the audit fees for auditing the financial
statements of the Group for the Year at HK$300,000.

The accounts for the Year were audited by HLB whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. In March
2012, the practice of HLB as partnership has been reorganized as HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB Limited”). The Audit Committee
has recommended to the Board that HLB Limited will be nominated for
appointment as new auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of its financial position and prospects. Financial results are
announced as early as possible, with interim report and annual report
as well as other price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures
published as required under the Listing Rules.

The management provides explanation, information and progress
update to the Board in order for it to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other issues put before the Board for approval and
consideration.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

FINANCIAL REPORTING (contd)

Throughout the Year, the Directors had selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial accounts of the Group which
give a true and fair view and are in accordance with generally accepted
accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. A statement by the Independent Auditors about their

reporting responsibilities for the Year is set out in this annual report.

The Independent Auditors did not report for the Year that there were
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are responsible for maintaining the system of internal
control of the Group and reviewing its effectiveness regularly. The internal
control system covers financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. During the Year, with the assistance of
the Audit Committee, the Directors had carried out an annual review on
internal control system and considered that the system was effective and
adequate. The Directors will continue enhancing the system in order to
cope with the changes in business environment with reference to the

recommendations of the Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ and the
Company's interests as a whole and encourages shareholders to attend
general meetings of the shareholders for participating in the important
decisions of the Company for which shareholders’ approval is required
under the Listing Rules and the laws of Bermuda. The Company regards
general meetings of the shareholders as an important event as it provides
an important opportunity for direct communication between the Board
and the shareholders. Notice of the 2011 AGM, together with the annual
report and circular, was sent to the shareholders more than 20 clear
business days before the meeting whereas notice of the special general
meeting, together with circular, was sent to the shareholders more than
10 clear business days before the meeting. These can allow more time for
the shareholders to digest information in the annual report and circulars,
and to consider whether joining the meetings or not. The Directors,
including the INEDs were available to answer questions at the 2011
AGM and special general meeting held in May 2011 and October 2011

respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

With the implementation of poll voting in lieu of show of hands at all
general meetings of a listed company, shareholders can fully reflect their
proprietary rights and interests by means of poll which is regarded as a
fairer method of determination on business matters than voting on a show

of hands at general meetings.

The Deputy Chairman of the Board, when acting as the Chairman of the
2011 AGM and special general meeting held on 26 May 2011 and on 28
October 2011 respectively, took the initiative to demand for a poll at the
commencement of the meetings and explained the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll to the shareholders. All resolutions were put to vote
and passed by poll under the scrutiny of the independent share registrar.
The poll results were made public by means of public announcements
which were uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

Statutory announcements, financial and other information of the Group

are made available on the Company's website, which is regularly updated.

Shareholders may put their enquires to the Board and also put forward
proposals at general meetings by way of a written notice addressed to the

Company Secretary at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Accountability and transparency are indispensable for ensuring good
corporate governance and, in this regard, timely communication with the
shareholders, including institutional investors, is crucial. The Company
considers good investor relations as a key part of its operations and
continues to promote investor relations and enhances communications

with the investors.

The Company maintains a corporate website (www.g-prop.com.hk) to
make the Group's information, statutory announcements, and other
financial and non-financial information available on the internet to facilitate

its communication with shareholders.

The Company welcomes suggestions from investors and shareholders,
and invites them to share their views and suggestions by contacting the

Investor Relations Team at investor.relations@chineseestates.com.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Since 2005, the Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Code to enhance corporate governance in the interests of the Company

and its shareholders.

The Company had applied the principles and complied with the
requirements of the Code throughout the Year. Having carried out the
review, none of the Directors was aware of any information that would
reasonably indicate that the Company was during the Year, incompliant
with the Code except for several deviations (some of them are minor

deviations in form) as follows:—

Under code provision A.2 of the Code, one of the important roles of
chairman is to ensure proper management of the board and, among other
things, to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issue arising at
board meetings and the directors receive adequate information, which
must be completed, reliable and in a timely manner. Although the office
of chairman of the Company has not been filled since 1 June 2007, the
Deputy Chairman of the Company has been acting as the chairman and
fulfilled its role and function properly. Accordingly, the Board considers that

such code provision has been complied with in substance.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms and subject to re-election. The INEDs
of the Company, however, are not appointed for any specific term.
Notwithstanding that, they are subject to retirement by rotation at the
Company's annual general meeting at least once every three years in
accordance with the Company's Bye-laws. The Directors are of the view

that the term of the INEDs is specific enough in substance.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRES

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (cont'd)

Under code provision C.2.2 of the Code, the board of a listed company
should consider the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the listed company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget as part of internal
control of the listed company in the annual corporate governance review.
Under code provision C.3.3(g) of the Code, the terms of reference of
the audit committee of a listed company should include the duty to
discuss with the management the system of internal control and ensure
that management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal
control system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the listed company's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes and budget. Although
the Company does not for the time being engage any staff, the Directors
have secured the assistance of Chinese Estates, the holding company of
the Company, to provide and to share with its accounting and financial
reporting resources, including human resources, accounting programmes
and other information system facilities to ensure that the Company has
fulfilled the legal and the Listing Rules' requirements on the preparation
of financial account reporting and internal control. The Directors
believed that such arrangement with Chinese Estates would substantially
reduce the cost of the Company in accounting, financial reporting
and internal controls functions. The Audit Committee had carried out
reviews in December 2011 on the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the managerial staff of Chinese Estates who were
responsible for accounting, financial reporting and internal control
functions. Various training programmes had been conducted by a well-
known audit firm for the managerial staff of Chinese Estates to enhance
their knowledge, skill and work quality on accounting, financial reporting
and internal control. The Board was satisfied with the current accounting
labour resources, qualifications and experience of Chinese Estates. The
Directors shall continue to use their best endeavours to ensure high
efficiency and effectiveness and independence of the financial reporting
system and internal control system of the Company under the aforesaid

arrangement with Chinese Estates.

CONCLUSION

Notwithstanding there were several deviations from the code provisions
(some of them are minor deviations in form), the Company trusts that
it has achieved high standards of corporate governance during the Year.
The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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EEEHRES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the

“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the

consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS
INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in notes 7 and 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities as at 31 December 2011 are set out in notes 33 and 17 to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 39.

An interim dividend for HKO.1 cent per share was declared for the Year
(2010: Nil). The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HKO.1 cent per share for the Year (2010: HKO.2 cents per

share).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on page 91.
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EEEREE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in note

15 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the investment properties held by the Group as at 31

December 2011 is set out in the schedule of properties on page 92.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

page 42 of the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted to approximately HK$56,116,000
(2010: HK$58,458,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
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ExeREE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Kong, Chi-ming (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Leung, Wing-pong (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo

Mr. Lam, Yat-fai

Mr. Leung, Yun-fai

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Leung,
Wing-pong and Mr. Lam, Yat-fai will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE(S)'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors, chief executive(s)
nor their associates, had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQ"), or
otherwise notified the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules").
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERENANRR ZE

THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2011, so far as are known to any Director or chief HEEZERARFKZSHITHAEMME R
executive of the Company, the following parties (other than a Director —— %+t -A=+—H KAAFRRIEZE %&Hﬁ‘
or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register kept &I 336{§7AH 7 2 B M A& ek 5 TT%D
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
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PiN/N
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be ~ EFTAXARS%IA F 2w Z A+ (é%%zﬁ
Al

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Name of Substantial
Shareholders
FERRER

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung

("Mr. Lau")
Bl R A ([21%4])

Asian Kingdom Limited

Crown Jade Limited

Global King (PTC) Ltd.

GZ Trust Corporation

Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
(“Chinese Estates”)
(rE£El)

Mass Rise Limited (“Mass Rise")
ESBERAR(IER]D)

Notes:

Number of
Shares
(ordinary share)
R EE
ZBER)

1,512,059,473

493,678,883

493,678,883

1,018,380,590

1,018,380,590

1,018,380,590

1,018,380,590

HEITBABRIN T

Percentage of

Issued Share

Capital

Capacity Notes BBRITRA
&1 Mt 2 Agtt

Founder of trust; beneficiary 1&3 62.26%
of trust and interest of
controlled corporations

BERAIZA BRERAR
REH QA2 S

Beneficial owner 1 20.33%

BEEEAA

Interest of controlled 1 20.33%
corporation

g NS $

Trustee 2 41.93%
EFEA

Trustee, beneficiary of trust 2 41.93%
and interest of controlled
corporations

EEACEREZTEAR
NI -

Interest of controlled 2 41.93%
corporations

X R B R

Beneficial owner 2 41.93%

BESBAA

B3

(1)  The entire issued share capital of Asian Kingdom Limited is owned (1) Asian Kingdom Limitedz & #f 2 8 17 l& &

by Crown Jade Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is fCrown Jade Limited# & ' i Crown Jade
wholly-owned by Mr. Lau. Crown Jade Limited and Mr. Lau were LimitedZ 2 MEBTRABBIEELEHRS -
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asian Crown Jade Limited} 1 5t & ¥ 18 & F Asian

Kingdom Limited was interested.

Kingdom Limited#t & # % 2 [ — #E iR {5 # 7
B

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA
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EEEaREuE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY  (contd)

Notes: (cont'd)

(2) GZ Trust Corporation as trustee of a discretionary trust holds units in
a unit trust of which Global King (PTC) Ltd. is the trustee. Global King
(PTC) Ltd. is entitled to exercise more than one-third of the voting
power at general meetings of Chinese Estates. Chinese Estates owns
the entire issued share capital of Mass Rise. Accordingly, each of Global
King (PTC) Ltd., GZ Trust Corporation and Chinese Estates was deemed
to be interested in the same interests stated against Mass Rise.

(3) Mr. Lau, by virtue of his 74.94% interests in the issued share capital
of Chinese Estates, was deemed to be interested in the same interests
stated against Chinese Estates.

All the interests stated above represent long position which included
interests in shares and underlying shares. As at 31 December 2011, no
short position was recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors was interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Company's businesses.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or its holding company's subsidiaries was a party to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
during the Year.

DIRECTORS" AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “Connected Transactions” as mentioned below,
there were no contracts of significance in relation to the Company's
business, to which the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries
was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year, and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest, nor there were any other contracts of significance in relation to
the Company's business between the Company or any of the Company's
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In November 2008, the Company as lender entered into a conditional
loan agreement with Fancy Mark Limited (“Fancy Mark"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinese Estates as borrower, granting a three-year revolving
facility of up to HK$200 million, with Chinese Estates acting as guarantor
for repayment of the loan (the “First Loan Transaction”).

According to the Listing Rules, the First Loan Transaction constituted the
continuing connected transactions of the Company and was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 12 December 2008. It expired on 3 November 2011.

In September 2011, before the expiry of the First Loan Transaction, the
Company as lender made a conditional loan agreement with Fancy Mark
as borrower, granting a three-year revolving facility of up to HK$300
million, with Chinese Estates acting as guarantor for repayment of the loan
commenced on 3 November 2011 (the “Second Loan Transaction”). The
Second Loan Transaction was approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on 28 October 2011.

As at 31 December 2011, a total sum of HK$300 million had been drawn
by Fancy Mark.

Having reviewed the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan
Transaction, the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules on the requirement to carry
out annual review on all continuing connected transactions, other than
fully exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules
(if any), confirmed that the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan
Transaction, notwithstanding that they were not made in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Company, were made on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company's auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors had issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

FE R Z

RZZZENF+—A ARAERER H—M
#E 22 E %A WE R FFancy Mark Limited
([Fancy Mark I EREFZET — M BEKREER
5% 0 IR & =200,000,0008 T A = F 2 &
REXR MEBARMEBEERIEAERA ([E—
BERZSH]) -

BRI ETRA - E-EERR S RAAD DB
BiExs YER-PBAFTATZARG
ZRRBAAGREART 2 BILBRIE
e A LELCIELE

EE—EERXRZEHH RZZE——F AKX
ARIWERBE T EFancy MarkfEBE T 5] — 1A
BHERBZE BT ——F+—A=8HHK"
& ®300,000,0008 LA =F 2 ERE
FoMEBAMEEERIERBERA ([FZEE
RRB]) - F_HEERRHGERZZ——F+A
ZTNBRITZBRFIAGNEEARRZE
SRR ERHLAE ©

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H Fancy Mark2 &
HU4 ££300,000,0007% 7T °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the
Company confirmed that the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan
Transaction:

(i)  had received the approvals of the Board;

(i) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the First Loan Transaction and the Second Loan
Transaction; and

(i) had not exceeded the caps disclosed in the previous
announcements made on 4 November 2008 and 22 September
2011 respectively.

Save as mentioned above, there were no other discloseable non-
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules during the Year.

Related party transactions, including the said continuing connected
transactions, entered into by the Group for the Year are disclosed in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

To the extent of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements which constituted continuing
connected transactions, the Company had complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Remuneration package comprised salaries and year-end bonuses based
on individual merits. The Company had adopted a share option scheme
since 15 February 2002 (the “2002 Scheme"). Details of the 2002
Scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no outstanding options at the beginning and at the end of the
Year. No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year. The 2002 Scheme expired on 14 February 2012.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:

(i)  the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the “MPF Scheme"); and

(i)  the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “Top-up Scheme").
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

Both the MPF Scheme and the Top-up Scheme were defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes were managed by their
respective trustees accordingly.

The MPF Scheme was available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and
with at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in
Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the Group at 5% based on the
staff's relevant income. The statutory maximum level of relevant income
for contribution purpose is HK$20,000 per month. Staff members were
entitted to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefit was required by law to be preserved until the retirement age of
65.

The Top-up Scheme was available to those employees with basic salary
over HK$20,000 and/or years of service over 5. Contributions to the
Top-up Scheme were made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% of
staff's basic salary (depending on the length of service) less the Group's
mandatory contribution under the MPF Scheme. Staff members were
entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retrement age, or were entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The Top-up Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the Top-up Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of
contributions of the Group.

Particulars of contribution to these schemes are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer and
five largest customers amounted for approximately 33.81% and 79.02%
respectively, of the Group's total turnover for the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
four largest suppliers accounted for approximately 55.06% and 99.88%
respectively, of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

Fancy Mark and Chase Master Company Limited, two wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Chinese Estates, were one of the Group's five largest
customers and four largest suppliers during the Year respectively. As at 31
December 2011, Chinese Estates, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
beneficially owned 41.93% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company, is deemed as a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (contd)

Apart from aforesaid, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued shares) had beneficial
interests in any of the Group's four largest suppliers and five largest

customers during the Year.

ADVANCES TO AN ENTITY

As at 31 December 2011, pursuant to Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules,
the Group had made advances of HK$300 million at HIBOR plus 1.5%
per annum to Fancy Mark. The loan had been granted for the capital
expenditure and general working capital of Chinese Estates and its
subsidiaries. The loan is a three-year revolving facility, with Chinese Estates
acting as the guarantor, but is unsecured, and repayable on demand with
maturity date on 2 November 2014.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the Year were audited by Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng ("HLB") whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting. In March 2012, the practice of HLB as
partnership has been reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.
As such, HLB will not offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of
the Company at the annual general meeting. HLB have confirmed that
there are no matters in connection with their retirement as auditors that

need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

A resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as new auditors of the Company for the ensuing year will be proposed at

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Kong, Chi-ming
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 March 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYRHAERES

HLB B & 3 5 E B oA
Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of G-Prop
(Holdings) Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 39 to 90, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYBRBMBEE

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY (contd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEZHBERR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE-_ZT——F+_A=+—HIFE

Revenue

Costs of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Administrative expenses

Fair value changes on investment properties

Profit (loss) before tax
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive (expense) income

Fair value changes on available-for-sale
financial assets

WA
& RA

EH

H AU A

TR X
BREWMEZRNFEZSD

BB AT A (&8
PRSEL R XX

AERDEF (B8
R 2 ()l
FELREEY
ATERD

Total comprehensive income for the year N EE 2 H UK EA 5

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

FATERAES
REERF (BE)

Total comprehensive income for the year " 2 T 5 A 1L
attributable to owners of the Company ZN&[E 245

Earnings (loss) per share (HK cents)
Basic and diluted

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BREF (BE) (B)

Notes

Bt

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
8,410 8,483
(162) (204)
8,248 8,279
3,981 210
(2,885) (5,218)
3,800 (4,150)
13,144 (879)
(50) (980)
13,094 (1,859)
(4,225) 5415
8,869 3,556
13,094 (1,859)
8,869 3,556
0.54 (0.08)

RAEMBRRMENGRMBRERN—#5 -

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R E B ESIR R R 3R

At 31 December 2011 R-—Z——F+_-_A=+—H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Goodwill
Interests in jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loan to a fellow subsidiary
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Short-term loans receivable
Time deposits and bank balances

Current liabilities

Amount due to ultimate holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Creditors and accruals

Deposits and receipts in advance
Tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE
BEY Y

o
SRR SR 2
HECRER

hEBEE
HESREE
BTRRMBARER

FEUWERIR ~ I RIB A

SEY XSS
TR RITAE AR

REBEE
RERBIER QB HE
RE R R KB R B A
FEAS AR I1A I At R0R
BE R FEWHIE
HMIAE &

REBEEFE

EEABERRBEE
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Notes

Bt

15
16
17
18

18
19

21
22

23
24
25

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
32,150 28,350
2,939 2,939
34,978 79,677
70,067 110,966
41,908 85,031
300,000 200,000
1,061 705
75,650 91,242
418,619 376,978
3 —_

103 230

488 1,220

438 427

1 9

1,043 1,886
417,576 375,092
487,643 486,058




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BB R

At 31 December 2011 RZ-ZE——F+-_A=+—H

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Translation reserve
Securities investments reserve
Retained profits
— Proposed final dividend
— Others

Total equity

Non-current liability
Deferred tax liabilities

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
9 March 2012 and signed on its behalf by:

Kong, Chi-ming
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

RATERAELS
MRA s
&N
Pt g B
PEE 3 5
FEHRE A
REE
—RR R B
—HAfl

RAER AR

FRBEME
ELEBR AR R

LA

Notes

Bt

26

27

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
24,282 24,282
351,638 351,638
234 234
(2,907) 1,318
2,428 4,857
111,861 103,623
487,536 485,952
107 106
487,643 486,058

EEEFEN _ZT-—_F=ZANLBHEREKRE

Bh YHMIEFRREFERE:

Leung, Wing-pong

RAVMBEREAMENGRAMBERERN —

EF

B

TE-—FFH SELXERQA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERTEZEE K

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZ——F+-_A=+—HILFE

Securities
Share Share  Translation investments Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity
BHRE R
B R EE EXRE 1] REER “E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FHET FHET FHET

At 1 January 2010 N 24,282 351,638 234 (4,097) 112,767 484,824
Loss for the year AEEFE - - - - (1,859) (1,859)
Fair value changes on available-forsale  HESREEY

financial assets NTEEES - - - 5415 - 5415

Total comprehensive income (expense)  AEE2E U ()

for the year B - - - 5415 (1,859) 3,556
Final dividend paid ERRERE - - - - (2,428) (2,428)
At 31 December 2010 RIZ-THEFA=+—H 2428 351,638 234 1318 108,480 485952
Profit for the year AEZREF - - - - 13,094 13,094
Fair value changes on availableforsale  H&ESREEZ

financial assets NTER - - - (4,225) - (4,225)

Total comprehensive (expense) income  AEE2E ()

for the year gyt - - - (4,225) 13,094 8,869
Final dividend paid BRREBRE - - - - (4,857) (4,857)
Interim dividend paid BRHREBRE - - - - (2,428) (2,428)
At 31 December 2011 R-2--£+-B=+-A 24280 351638 234 (2.907) 114,289 487,536

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated 434 Bf# MK M FE VR A MBREO— LD

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMERTMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZEZ

Operating activities

Profit (loss) before tax

Adjustments for:
Interest income
Fair value changes on investment properties
Net exchange (gain) loss

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits and
prepayments

(Decrease) increase in creditors and accruals,
deposits and receipts in advance

Cash used in operating activities
Net Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities

Redemption of available-for-sale financial assets
Interest received

Loan to a fellow subsidiary

Net cash (used in) generated from
investing activities

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Net advances from ultimate holding company
Net (repayment to) advances from
fellow subsidiaries

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash

equivalents
Time deposits and bank balances

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

E——F+ZA=+—HIFE

RExR®

B ATE A (E1E)
AT ERZAE:

A BUA
BREMEZ N FER
PE 3 (Wak) BRFHE

LEACEDH 2 ELERS
t

LE
ﬁ%%ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
(#E ) B4
FERBRIA K AT FRIR - e )
R IE OB ) 10

REEEB RS
EH% BRI 1S BF R

ARREXRBE RS TR

REXH
BOSFEemEE

B RS
ETRAMBRARER

(AR)REKREXKZ
REEHE

MR

EARE

B A AR BOF
REHEAR GEHR) B30FE

ARBMEXKE 2R FHE

RERBEEEEE
(R D) #nFEE

R—A—HBzHER
RE%EEE

EREH X

RT-ZA=+—-HZRER
Re%EHEA

RERRSEEBEBERTN

TEHFRRIRITE

A MBS IRARM AR

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
13,144 (879)
(7,225) (6,881)
(3,800) 4,150
(2,658) 2,451
(539) (1,159)
(356) 14
(721) 9
(1,616) (1,136)
(47) (58)
(1,663) (1,194)
88,583 -
4,631 3,670
(100,000) -
(6,786) 3,670
(7,285) (2,428)
3 —
(127) 41
(7,409) (2,387)
(15,858) 89
91,242 91,247
266 (94)
75,650 91,242
75,650 91,242
B GmERN—EH oo

TE-—FFH SELXERQA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 December 2011 #HZE—

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange"). Its ultimate holding company is Chinese
Estates Holdings Limited (“Chinese Estates”), a company incorporated
in Bermuda with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange. The addresses
of the Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are

disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are set

out in Notes 33 and 17 respectively.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The accounting policies adopted in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011 are consistent with those followed
in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements for the

year ended 31 December 2010 except as described below.

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the

following new or revised standards, amendments and interpretations

(“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group's financial year

beginning on 1 January 2011. The new HKFRSs adopted by the Group in

the consolidated financial statements are set out below:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of related parties.
The new definitions emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in which persons and key
management personnel affect related party relationships of an entity. The
revised standard also introduces an exemption from the general related
party disclosure requirements for transaction with a government and
entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the same government as the reporting entity. The accounting policy for
related parties has been revised to reflect the changes in the definition
of related parties under the revised standard. The adoption of the revised
standard did not have any impact on the financial position or performance

of the Group.

The Group had early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred
Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”, in respect of the recognition of
deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair value under HKAS 40
“Investment Property” for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
and this change in accounting policy has been consistently applied in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

Save as described above, the application of the new HKFRSs had no
material effect on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly,
no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Disclosures — Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-
time Adopters'

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets!

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9

2.

B L& ERHEEMBEREEINTEHA

ertHIMEaE
RENEVNTEBRERTE

A

SR RERMBRRZ
WHBELESF

AEBVRREFHRATICERBDRERZ

M REERTEE

BAYMBHRE

CHES)

BAMBRE

CHES)

BAYMBHREENETHR

(BFTA)

BEMBREERNETH L
BANBREEEOR

g s 2ER
ERIET5H BE-BERBRRIG
BRRBEZEE
B

ERETH BE-cREEER

BE-SREER
EREEIHE

BANBREERENR
R LA H R

(Amendments) and Transition Disclosure®
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities®
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income?
Employee Benefits®

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures®

Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*

" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (contd)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as revised in November
2010) adds requirements for the financial liabilities and for derecognition.
Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent

accounting periods.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015, with earlier application permitted. The application of HKFRS 9 might
affect the classification, measurement and presentation of the Group's

financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine whether
these new and revised HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how its
results of operations and financial position are prepared and presented.
These new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to

how the results and financial position are prepared and presented.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis, except for investment properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

(@) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are

de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share

of the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date). Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd)

Subsidiaries (cont'd)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised

losses are also eliminated.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from
non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on

disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(a) Basis of consolidation (cont'd)
Transactions with non-controlling interests (cont'd)
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
where appropriate.

(b) Goodwill

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as a bargain purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of

the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill

is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Goodwill (cont'd)
On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or

loss on disposal.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled

entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in
jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity
of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group's share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled

entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to the
extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

(d)

(e)

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Impairment losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from the
changes in the fair value of the investment properties are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year in which the property is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

®

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of such category of financial assets are set out

below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at fair

value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

®

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including loan to a fellow subsidiary, debtors
and deposits, short-term loans receivable and time deposits and
bank balances) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories under
HKAS 39. Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of securities investments reserve, until the financial
asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in securities
investments reserve is reclassified to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment loss on financial assets below).

However, interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future

cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

®

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)
Financial assets (cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

(i)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
(i)  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
(iiiy it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest

rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

®

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets (cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When available-for-sale financial assets are determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment loss is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group's financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

®

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity (cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including amount due to ultimate holding
company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, creditors and accruals
and deposits received) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire, or the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

®

(8)

(h)

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Financial instruments (cont'd)

Derecognition (cont'd)

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties
under operating leases, is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of

the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimate
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset

to that asset's net carrying amount.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

(h)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Taxation (cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised.
Current and deferred tax are recognised to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in

the accounting for the business combination.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the entity

intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

(i)

()

(k)

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as expenses on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

() Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation

as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will

be required

made of the

to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the

consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of

the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties

surrounding

the obligation. Where a provision is measured using

the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying

amount is the present value of those cash flows.

(m) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is

related to the Group if that person:

M
@
3

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group's parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

@

3

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of

a group of which the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)

(m) Related parties (cont'd)
(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (cont'd)

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDCGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY' (contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (cont'd)
Investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at the end of each reporting period based on its market value and by
adopting investment method, and/or direct comparison method, as
appropriate. The valuation was relied on the discounted cash flow analysis
and the capitalisation of income approach. The investment method is
based upon estimates of future results and a set of assumptions specific
to each property to reflect its tenancy and cashflow profile. The fair value
of each investment property reflects, among other things, rental income
from current term leases, term vyield rate, assumptions about rental
income from future reversion leases in light of current market conditions,
the assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by the
valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors, including
term vyield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such vyield rates were adopted
after considering the investment sentiments and market expectations of
properties of similar nature. Direct comparison method assumes each
of these properties is capable of being sold in its existing state with the
benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant markets. Should there be
changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions, the fair value
of the investment properties will change in future.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been impairment
of goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 3. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying the
value-in-use calculations.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments:

Financial assets EEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets HFEeREE

Loans and receivables (including time deposits
and bank balances)
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Amortised cost
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

(b)

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-sale
financial assets, loan to a fellow subsidiary, debtors and deposits,
short-term loans receivable, time deposits and bank balances,
amount due to ultimate holding company, amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries, creditors and accruals and deposits received. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s risk exposure relating
to financial instruments or the manner in which it manages and

measures the risks.

Market risk

() Foreign currency risk
The majority of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities by value and the rental income are denominated
in HK$, except the available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD"). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign current assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Assets BE
EURO (“EUR") BT ([BRT])
usD E
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(b)

SR T A )

CHEREEREREE
FEBZIECRIABREGESRE
E- BETREMBARER  BURE N
T EHERER  ERFERRRITER
REBEERARFEA RERZKEA
BIFE  ENRIA LB AR YIRS -
ZETRMTAFBERSMERE - TXH
P Bz % 2R T AB R 2 B N an g R
ZERBIBR -BEREEEERERZSE
[\ Bz - A BEOR B B AN B RUBERRBUE & 2 1
i o

rEEFHReRITAZERLEERE
ZERBRZTALEEZES -

% B

0 SMEEE
AEBRHBNEREENERAGEE
BEARBEEBABANETLSEEE
f-HEFESREENAET ([E
TT) REEEEAL - NEBRE A ET
AINERENVEE R B B2 SNSRI
K- AREBZYEELINERR
W B E BN EARINE R

AEEUIINEFEEBEENR

LHIRZEREEDT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
- 40,952
77,166 130,635




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Market risk (cont'd)

@

(i)

Foreign currency risk (cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the HK$ against the relevant foreign
currencies. As HK$ are pegged to USD, it is assumed that
there would be no material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies and therefore is excluded from the
analysis below. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

A positive/negative number below indicates an increase/
decrease in profit where the relevant currencies strengthen
5% against HK$.

Impact of EUR
Profit or loss

The Group's sensitivity to foreign currency has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the decrease in
monetary net assets denominated in EUR.

Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group does not have any bank borrowings.

The Group has interest-bearing assets including available-
for-sale financial assets, loan to a fellow subsidiary and time
deposits and bank balances and is therefore exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk, details of which have been disclosed in
respective notes. The Group currently does not have interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates
("HIBOR") and The London Interbank Offered Rates
("LIBOR").
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REMBRRMEE

(b)

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Market risk (cont'd)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (cont'd)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower,

the Group's:

profit before tax for the year ended 31 December
2011 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,232,000 (2010: loss before tax decrease/
increase HK$2,225,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable

rate financial assets; and

no impact to the other component of equity for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Price risk

The Group's investments classified as available-for-sale

financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of

each reporting period and expose the Group to price risk.

The management manages this exposure by maintaining a

portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. In addition,

the Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price

risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's:

profit before tax for the years ended 31 December

2011 and 2010 would not increase/decrease; and

other component of equity for the year ended
31 December 2011 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$3,844,000 (2010: HK$8,235,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2011

assets are the carrying amounts of those assets. With respect to

in relation to each class of recognised financial

credit risk arising from loan to a fellow subsidiary, the Group's
exposure to risk of default of the counterparty is limited as the
counterparty has good history of repayment. The Group's time
deposits are deposited with banks of high credit quality in Hong
Kong.

The Group made transactions with counterparties with acceptable
credit quality in conformance to the Group treasury policies
to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable credit ratings from
reputable credit rating agencies and scrutiny of financials for non-
rated counterparties are two important criteria in the selection of
counterparties. The credit quality of counterparties will be closely
monitored over the life of the transactions. The Group reviews its
financial counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit strength of

each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the Group
also monitors potential exposures to each financial institution

counterparty.

Other than concentration of credit risk on the loan to a fellow
subsidiary, the Group does not have any other significant

concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring current
and expected liquidity requirements and ensuring sufficient liquid
cash and intended credit lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet the Group's liquidity requirements in the short
and long term. The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by
management. Management will raise bank borrowings whenever

necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have

significant exposure to liquidity risk.

The contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's financial liabilities which are required to be repaid
within one year or on demand amounted to HK$968,000 (2010
HK$1,798,000).
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RPECHFE2 EERESRHBERRDE
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REMBRRMEE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard
terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised costs in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that
are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from

valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The following table shows the Group's analysis of financial
instruments recorded at fair value by the fair value hierarchy:

At 31 December 2011 K==
Available-for-sale financial assets  FE&E S B A E

At 31 December 2010 n=
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ FE& £ @& E

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy.

68 G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2011

(9

]

a30

AFEM
AR R R R R R BB 5
B2 SBAERSBABZATFENDF
SETHBEARHELENE

ARRER([EF)RR HAEMHE®RE
NIZEEBERAARZEREER SR A
BERmERQTFERE-

TRERBRERARRATEFEZLH
TEZAH URBEAFEZAIBREEERE
DRE-E=H:

F—H: RVEFEZERSZZEEN
BERNEETIZIREZRE
(REHE)

K AFEFEREER (AER)
SHE (2EER)EABE
ZEERBEME2E8E (R
F—RZBERIN) R

RYEFERBAZE B
FRTMGEEMECEELR
B8R GERBRERE) 2/
ERMES-

‘sva;
I
2

TRETRAFESBBIFE DA TE
HRAEEZERMITADN:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—& E=& E=R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FAET

76,886 - - 76,886

164,708 - - 164,708

REEIRHAAE—R - B_REE=R
AL RIS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value estimation (cont'd)

5 T A @

(© AFEM(E)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is RERMSEEZeMITAZ A TENS
based on quoted market prices at the end of each reporting period. A& BRR A ¥ 2 (B o fw B 2 06 5 45
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and REGM-RGE K ERER RER
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, BREEREBEESRE BZSEKEER
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent BRREMEAFELE#ETZMERS 8
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s MSARAER NEBMAIF /M EEMN
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets Bezm5HREREAMCEAB-ILETA
held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are BEtAE— o

included in Level 1.

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

6. EARKREE

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard A& E@BBIBIERE B KL T E M@ LIRS B E
the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a going concemn, so  EfB ' REREAEXABRESHEZ FNERE
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the Company 74 X ZBIZARIFAEE 2 TREIFECE 25
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services 71 UBERAEBE AN QAR EFERED
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at ¥ - W A H i S MHABEE IR -

a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's capital ~ E BB ERRT R ERAEE 2 EA%EE
structure to maximise the returns to shareholders through the optimisation i i LA 58 & & 2N kR 2 45 B AL & 7% J 70 48 B 1
of the debt afforded by a sound capital position, and make adjustments {24 Z BN W E R BIER AL  BREFE
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions. The & AZ B3R AL EE LRI H — T — TFREF

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2010.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors its capital — Zx& El3&E A
structure on the basis of the gearing ratio. At 31 December 2011 and  E27TEH A
2010, the Group's gearing ratio was undefined because the Group did not ~—Z 4

have any borrowings at the end of each reporting period.

7. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts

received and receivable, analysed as follows:

Property rental income

Interest income from investment and finance

T
BRAARBLERERLANER 1B
R EEEH—B KRB —FR-F
+ZA=t B mAREERE S

RUMEF G RLFERTEANRELE

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET

WAEE WK EY Z &5

TR O

WEHES WA 1,764 1,695
"E R EE R E WA 6,646 6,788
8,410 8,483

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA
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REMBRRMEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to make

strategic decisions.

The Group has engaged two reportable segments — (i) investment and
finance; and (ii) properties investment. The segmentations are based on
the information about the operations of the Group that management uses

to make decisions.
Principal activities are as follows:
Investment and finance -

Investing and financing activities

Properties investment . Property leasing

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations before tax expense but not including the major non-cash items.
The major non-cash item is fair value changes on investment properties.

There is no intersegment revenue accountable for in both years.

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported segment

profit or loss remain unchanged from 2010.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that operate
different activities. They are managed separately because each business

has different markets and requires different marketing strategies.

Included in revenue arising from investment and finance of
HK$6,646,000 (2010: HK$6,788,000) is revenue of approximately
HK$5,070,000 (2010: HK$5,961,000) which arose from the Group's
three (2010: four) major customers and each customer accounted for

more than 10% of the Group's total revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Operating segment information is presented below:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Revenue
Revenue from external customers

Results
Segment results for reportable segments

Unallocated items
Interest income
Unallocated corporate expenses, net
Income tax expense

Core profit (excluding major non-cash item)
Major non-cash item
— fair value changes on investment properties

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

KA
RaMBERZMA

MEKA

APBZRAFXFE

FrighR X

BUER (FREEEFREER)

TEFHLER

—RENEy ATES

ARAREARGREERRN

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2011

Assets
Segment assets for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities for reportable segments

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

ADEZAREE

GREERE

&

Wl S= A\
8. =ZiEDIE (=

2=

BEHRARZFIT

FREZEWRBERE
BHE—F——F+-_H=+—HIFZF
Investment Properties
and finance investment Consolidated
RERBE MERE iy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TAER TER
6,646 1,764 8,410
9,304 1,619 10,923
579
(2,158)
(50)
9,294
3,800
13,094
REMBEMRRERE
RZF——FF+=ZA=+—H
Investment Properties
and finance investment Consolidated
RERBE MERE 2E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THERT TAR
448,279 37,468 485,747
2,939
488,686
536 496 1,032
118
1,150

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA
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REVBRBRRHE
PR -Wa =
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EiEDE (@)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEXEHBREREK
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE_FE—FFF+ _HA=+—HIFE
Investment Properties
and finance investment Consolidated
RERBE MERE ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR TR
Revenue ['ON
Revenue from external customers REIHEP 2 A 6,788 1,695 8483
Results ES
Segment results for reportable segments NERNBEZHEER 4,437 1,508 5,945
Unallocated items ROBIER
Interest income FIEBA 93
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEZRFRX (2767)
Income tax expense ERAX (980)
Core profit (excluding major non-cash item) #U&EF (FEFEXTEFRLER) 2,291
Major non-cash item T2HESER
— fair value changes on investment properties ~ — R E¥ME 2 AFEEE (4,150)
Loss for the year attributable to owners ARAREARGEFERR
of the Company (1,859)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position REBMBMREE
At 31 December 2010 RZFE—FF+=-A=+—H
Investment Properties
and finance investment Consolidated
RERBE WERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT TR
Assets BE
Segment assets for reportable segments MERNBIBEE 452,846 32,159 485,005
Unallocated corporate assets ok /NIy - 2,939
Consolidated total assets RAREELTE 487944
Liabilities =1
Segment liabilities for reportable segments AERNEZARARE 1326 551 1877
Unallocated corporate liabilities KPBZNAAE 15

Consolidated total liabilities LABREEE 1,992
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Geographical information
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, all the Group's
operations are located in Hong Kong. The Group's revenue is all derived

from Hong Kong for both years.

S S N Sf .
8. ZiENE (&)

HEER
He_T——FR-_FT—ZTF+-_A=+—H
HEE AEBETBLCENMEES -EMETF
EAREEZRAZEREESE-

9. OTHER INCOME 9. EMA
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Included in other income are: H A B
Interest income B U A 579 93
Exchange gain, net B 54 U o 7 7B 2,658 -
10. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 10. REE AN (EE)
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived REERF (EE)
at after (charging) crediting: 2 (kR ) EEA:
Total staff costs: BB ARMEEE
Directors’ emoluments F5e (470) (410)
Salaries and other benefits e RAEMBET (989) (899)
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRTEFEH I 5K (52) (40)
(1,511) (1,349)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & (300) (300)
Exchange loss, net [ 5 B 18 558 - (2,451)
Gross rental income from investment properties REWMEZHeWALE 1,764 1,695
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment B AFEEEESBA
properties that generated rental income ZIREMEERKE
during the year sz (146) (187)
Direct operating expenses from investment AEEWEELHRS
properties that did not generate rental WAZRENMEEE
income during the year LERY (16) (17)
1,602 1,491

—E-——FFH SELEBRLT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBRRMETE
11. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' 1. 25=2kEEME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ ES#e
Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the Directors for the BHE-_ZT-——FR_ZE-—ZF+H
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as follows: =t+—HLEEE BNSENTEESEL
weRkEMMES0T :
2011 2010
Salaries Salaries
and other and other
Fee emoluments Total Fee  emoluments Total
FeR ek
e Hit# & ot e Hivie et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TR TiERx FEL FET FET
Mr. Kong, Chi-ming IHEBRE 10 - 10 10 - 10
Mr. Leung, Wing-pong DEBFE 10 - 10 10 - 10
Dr. David Chain, Chi-woo BHRBE 150 - 150 130 - 130
Mr. Lam, Yat-fai WABEE 150 - 150 130 - 130
Mr. Leung, Yun-fai REBLE 150 - 150 130 - 130
470 - 470 410 - 410
No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31 EEHERBE_T——FR_ZE—FTF
December 2011 and 2010. T Z A=+ — 8 1L FE A R E HCEE A] B
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, AEBLERSFMES 28 (22—

all (2010: all) were Directors whose emoluments were included in

(@.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors, as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.
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REMBRRME

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises:

Current tax:

Hong Kong

Deferred tax

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the

estimated assessable profits for the year.

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)

before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

Profit (loss) before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Tax charge for the year

B

EHIIA
B

IEFET IR

BRELADS FI (B 1R)

REBF BT E16.5%
(ZZE—Z5F:165%)
HECTE

BB E BERRBAZ
BT

RBBME FAREY 2
BB E

AERZFBISERZ
BT E

& R R R
B EE

AERHRBX

12. Fr{S R X

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
49 51

1 929

50 980

BENSRIDRBEAFE 2 (H5T BRBOEN %

FHE1650 (ZE—ZFHF :1650%):H -

RERZFABRI B EES 2 BRERE 2R

HAna R (ER)HERDT

2011 2010
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
T FET
13,144 (879)
2,169 16.5 (145) 16.5
(12) (0.1) (556) 63.3
(1,466) (11.1) 950 (108.1)
382 2.9 1,619 (184.2)
(1,023) (7.8) (888) 101.0
50 0.4 980 (111.5)

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA

75



76

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBREME
13. DIVIDENDS 13. fg B
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
(a) Final dividend for 2010 paid on @ RZE—FA+LEH
17 June 2011 of HKO.2 cents Bk z—E—FF
(2009: HKO.1 cent) per share REAAR B & RR0.27EL
ZZTAF 0. 8M) 4,857 2,428
(b) Interim dividend for 2011 paid on b)) RZE——FAA=+)N\H
28 September 2011 of HKO.1 cent BRftz —ZE——%F
(2010: Nil) per share A AR B F R0 I
(ZF—FF:8§) 2,428 -
Total dividends paid BRI B AR EE 7,285 2,428

Final dividend of HKO.1 cent (2010: HKO.2 cents) per ordinary share
has been proposed by the Directors and is subject to approval by the

shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

14. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of HK$13,094,000
(2010: loss of HK$1,859,000) and on the weighted average number of
2,428,255,008 (2010: 2,428,255,008) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2011
and 2010 was the same as the basic earnings (loss) per share as there

were no diluting events during both years.
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REMBRRME

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. IREWZE

HK$'000
FHT
Fair value AFE
At 1 January 2010 WZZE—-ZF—-H—H 32,500
Decrease in fair value recognised in the consolidated RiFE2ERRBRKRPERZAFERD
statement of comprehensive income (4,150)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZFE+_-_HA=+—H 28,350
Increase in fair value recognised in the consolidated RiFE EEWARKRTER Z A FEEN
statement of comprehensive income 3,800
At 31 December 2011 R-B-——5+-A=+—H 32,150

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

properties.

Property valuations as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were carried
out by B.l Appraisals Limited (“B.l. Appraisals”), independent qualified
professional valuers, who hold a recognised professional qualification
and have recent relevant experience. Property valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties at

similar locations.

The valuation report for the investment properties as at 31 December
2011 is signed by a director of B.l. Appraisals, who is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation is performed in
accordance with The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standards
on Properties (1st Edition 2005) published by The Hong Kong Institute of

Surveyors.

The Group's investment properties are under long-term leases in Hong
Kong as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

REEXANBBEURRESSEEREEL
AEBEMAEMEREDRAAFERAGE X
DBEBARINEREDSE -

BUYAEREXRMHEMRBERFGEARAA
(MRMERFENER =T ——FR=-T—F
F+ZA=1T—HETYEME - ROBEBRF&
RERAEXER YAROHZABER Y
EHED2RALUBHREMEZRREZT

S a5 —
BREET -

R-F——F+-_A=1+—H REVEZMHE
W EE%TEIIW.HHSZé%(ié/a/ﬁwzﬁﬂiégé
B)RZ-RAEDETEENEMBSAED
Z%%fﬁfﬁﬂll(_g CREE R EITER -

RZE——FR=ZE—ZEF+=-_A=+—H &
SEZRENENEBREHRHENESE -
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HATKBERHE
16. GOODWILL 16. &
HK$'000
FAT
Cost Jo#N
At 1 January 2010, R-_Z—ZF—-H—H"
31 December 2010 —E-ZEF+=-A=+—H
and 31 December 2011 NZF——F+_A=+—H 2,939
Impairment AR
At 1 January 2010, RZZ2—-ZF—-HA—H"
31 December 2010 —E-ZEF+=-A=+—H
and 31 December 2011 r—ZE——F+-_A=1+—H -
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2010 R=ZF—Z2F+=A=+—H
and 31 December 2011

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the
following cash-generating unit ("CGU"). The carrying amount of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 December 2011 and
2010 was allocated as follow:

BREME

Investment properties

The recoverable amount for the CGU has been determined based on
value-in-use calculation using five-year cash flow projection approved by
the Directors. The pre-tax discount rate of approximately 8.96% (2010:
11.67%) per annum was applied to the cash flow projection when
assessing the recoverability of the CGU containing goodwill.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
preparation of the cash flow projection. Key assumptions included gross
margin and discount rate which are determined by the Directors based
on past performance and its expectation for market development. The
values assigned to key assumptions are based on historical experience,
current market condition, approved forecasts and consistent with external
information sources. Gross margin are budgeted gross margin. The
discount rate used was determined with reference to weighted average
cost of capital of similar companies in the industry reflected specific
risks relating to the industry. The Directors believe that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of the CGU to exceed the recoverable amounts of CGU. During
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Directors determine
that there is no impairment of the goodwiill.
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2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
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FEMERRME
17. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 17, H[R) ¥ Il M A A 25
ENTITIES
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Share of net assets of jointly controlled entities R RIS FEE - -

Details of the Group's jointly controlled entities, which are held indirectly ARG HEZERFAEZ A LB LRZEFIMER T

by the Company as at 31 December 2011, are as follows: ——E+ A=t —HZHFBWT:
Form of Proportion of nominal
Name of jointly business Place of value of issued Principal
controlled entity and structure incorporation share capital held activities
e T
HEEZEFBBEERE ES S k=3 X118 AR SZ itk B IRAEELE R FEEHR
Golden Royce Investment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 40% Dormant
THRTKREFRAR Ealigoava EPe Bme
Top Grade Assets Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands 50% Dormant
EallijzAva RBHEARES TEex
Upgrade Properties Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands 50% Dormant
Eallijzava RBEARES TEex

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's jointly — ZNSEE Z HEEHEHIME 2 B ERBIMANT :

controlled entities is set out below:

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Total assets BEBTE - -
Total liabilities BEBE (160,145) (160,138)
Net liabilities FEE (160,145) (160,138)
Net assets attributable to the Group REEEGNFEE - -
Revenue A - -
Loss for the year NFEEBE (7) (3,990)
Profit for the year attributable to the Group N5 B e AE AN 2 A - -

—E-——FFH SELEBRLT 79



80

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMEE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise: EeRMEERSE:
Club debentures (Note 1) #FES (K1)
Floating rate notes pad ,%'\ﬁﬁ%

Listed (Note 2) i (MEE2)

Unlisted (Note 3)

LT (HIRE3)

Analysis for reporting purposes as: TERERE 2 DI
Non-current assets ERBNEE
Current assets MEEE

Notes:

M

@

3)

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

The club debentures classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The costs of club
debentures were HK$220,000 and a full provision for impairment have
been made during the year of 2007.

At 31 December 2010, the listed floating rate note which carried
interest at Euro Interbank Offered Rates plus 0.2% per annum, payable
on quarterly basis, was denominated in EUR.

The unlisted floating rate notes with maturity dates in 2012 and 2014
carry interest at LIBOR plus 0.3% to 0.35% per annum, payable on
quarterly basis, and the balances with maturity date in 2012 were
classified as current assets. At the end of the reporting period, the
unlisted floating rate notes are denominated in USD.

Annual Report 2011
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2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TABT

- 38,976
76,886 125,732
76,886 164,708
34,978 79,677
41,908 85,031
76,886 164,708

DEAFECHEE SRESFRAAINBR R
FIREE B AR - g8 E 5 2 A A220,000
BT DR T FEEL 2 EUNERE -

RZZE—ZF+_A=+—H RFFNERE
MERITRIZER B IO2E A BEX BILEHF 2
THEEREBEUBITABA -

B R T —HE_T-NFZFLH
=y _mTJ%Hzi?’F'JI (i KfﬁfTﬂ%TﬁngOSF
FO3SEFHE ERENF MIEMAA=ZT
— BB EARDEE -NREH
K ZEFLTFERRBIUETREN -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

19. LOAN TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

On 4 November 2008, the Company, as lender, entered into a loan
agreement with Fancy Mark Limited (“Fancy Mark”), a subsidiary of
Chinese Estates, as borrower, and Chinese Estates, as guarantor, to grant
a three-year revolving facility of up to HK$200 million to Fancy Mark at an

interest rate of HIBOR plus 1% per annum (“First Revolving Loan").

On 22 September 2011, the Company, as lender, entered into a new
loan agreement to renew the First Revolving Loan with revised principal
of HK$300 million with the same parties for three-year commenced from
3 November 2011 at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum

("Second Revolving Loan").

For further details of the Second Revolving Loan, please refer to the

Company's circular dated 12 October 2011.

19. fE FRIAME R RIEX

RZZEZNF+—AMA - A27 (EAEER)
H1EEE 7 M B A AlFancy Mark Limited ([Fancy
Mark | 1ERBF)REE (ERERA)F
Y E R mFancy MarkigiE—£ 5%
200,000,000 T2 = FHERERME WL E
R ENERBEBBITRERSINE ([E—%
BEmER]) -

RZZE——FNA=-+=H A28 (EAEH)
iR R AR — BN BRE %
fBIRE - N2 585 /300,000,000 B =
T-——F+—-A=HB;AAH=F HWERZF
FERBEARTAZEFEMSE (E_FEBR
B%l) -

\

N

FRE_ZRREFZEFHMBER F2HAR
AR - T——FTAT-BZEXR-

Highest balance

during the year

Name of fellow subsidiary EESE NI FRE= AR 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FaT F&T

Fancy Mark Fancy Mark
— First Revolving loan —F—EBEEREER 200,000 - 200,000
— Second Revolving loan —E_ERRBREX 300,000 300,000 -

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA
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REMBRRMEE

20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade receivables of
HK$8,400 (2010: Nil) comprised rental receivables billed in advance and

settlements from tenants are expected upon receipts of billings.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit quality
of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to minimise any
credit risk associated with these trade receivables. Rental in respect of

leased properties are payable in advance by the tenants.

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance

for doubtful debts) at the end of the reporting period:

0 — 30 days
31 - 60 days

[ 3

[
m +

Total trade receivables as at 31 December 2011 were past due but not

impaired.

Despite the fact that no collateral is held, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and settlement after the end of the
reporting period, and considered that the amounts are still recoverable

and no allowance for doubtful debts is required.
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JEUERTE 12 & RIBEMNREABIERIE 55 E
84008 L (ZZE—ZF &) EFBEEBELH
EmMEREFeNREIHERSI N2 EBKES -

AEEEFTRELEERR UHEEERS
HBF2EEER - AEETYERURER B
LREREEBZERUEZFAZEERR -
HEWEZBELBAHRBEPLBELEN -

JEWE SHE (MBRREREE) RBEHRZE
BT

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
8 —_

RIE——S+T_A=T - HREKESHEL
ROBHERERE-

REBBAWELR ARECHEEE BEE
R RN W ERRE Z ERIELFE XRA
ZBBDATSE EE2EREREE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBMRME

21. SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE

e s & R
B RIBARER

Loans receivable
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Less: Amounts written off as uncollectible

during the year

The Group maintained a defined credit policy in accordance with
respective loan agreements and the Group did not hold any collateral over

these balances.

22. TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES

The time deposits carry interests at prevailing market deposit rates and
mature within one month. The Group does not hold collateral over the

balances.

23. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

25. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

There were no trade payables included in creditors and accruals as at 31
December 2011 and 2010.

21. B HIR I E R

B AR EEAMER
AR E 2 IR

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
3,203 3,203

- (3,203)
(3,203) -

AEBREERN 2 ERHEMRAREZFEER
R MASELERZSERFTHEMERRD -

22. FEATF R MR 1T 45 8%

EMEFFREBZTSERMEGE AR —@
AREH - REE Y EAL AR HEM -

23. RBmLIZEIR A B8

REBEERRBFALSERR 28 RIREL

Eg-

I

24. R B[R Z W B AR

REARZEMBERRAFARSEER 2ERREKX

B3 -
25. JERTBRIE K B 5T 308

RIE——FR_ZB-ZEF+_A=+—H &
MERBREFFRBEALECEERNEZREA -

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA
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REMBRRMEE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. A
Number of Share
shares capital
RO E ;&S
HK$'000
FHAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.01E T TR
Authorised: ETERRA :
At 1 January 2010, R_ZT—ZF—-H—H"
31 December 2010 —T-TF+-_A=+—H
and 31 December 2011 R-—ZE——4%+=-HA=+—~H 80,000,000,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BT BRI
At 1 January 2010, R_ZT—ZF—H—H"
31 December 2010 —E-TF+=-A=+—H
and 31 December 2011 k=T ——F+ZA=+—8H 2,428,255,008 24,282

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the current and
prior reporting periods:

At 1 January 2010 i
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ 4R A 2 B MK 25 & Bk
comprehensive income

27 BEEFIEBEE

T RAEERARE ML ®E RS HREE
HRETERCHIBAEE (BREE) LAY
&) :

At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H
Charged to the consolidated statement of R 4x4 2 B HRE 0B
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2011 R=ZB——F+=-A=+—-H

Investment

properties Tax losses Total
REME REBE mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

105 (928) (823)
1 928 929
106 - 106
1 - 1
107 - 107

For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets have been
offset.

At 31 December 2011, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$702,362,000 (2010: HK$705,677,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax assets have been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All unused tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 February 2002
("2002 Scheme") for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
Directors and eligible employees. Pursuant to the terms of the 2002
Scheme, the Company may grant options to Directors and full time
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company at a consideration of HK$10 per grant. The
subscription price for the shares under the 2002 Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Directors being at least the higher of the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets
on the date of grant, or the average closing price of the shares stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. Options granted are exercisable
at any time during a period to be notified by the Directors but limited to
a maximum period of ten years after the date the options are granted.

Options granted should be accepted within 21 days from date of offer.

There were no outstanding options at the beginning and at the end of
the year. No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the

year and the said scheme expired on 14 February 2012.

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group did not have any material

capital commitments and contingent liabilities.

30. OPERATING LEASES

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group did not have any material

operating lease commitments.

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme") and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme").
Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are based on a percentage of
employees’ salaries ranging from 5% to 10%, depending upon the
length of service of the employees. From 1 December 2000, newly
joined employees are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to

the scheme at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of approximately HK$52,000 (2010: HK$40,000) represented

contributions payable to these schemes by the Group for the year.

ELEEREE -RE_FTT_FHI KN
ARB A RERI0E T 2 R E R A QR K EH
BRARIZEELRZREERLARBARAE
B ZERE — TR _FR B2 ROREER
EERE ERE/BRMHRE LB RERI AT
AMEXRMT WA ESRORERRL AH
AR fEE % A EB XS R |ERAR KD
EBFHE(URSERE) ERHZBERER
EENE 2 HRAABERITE  EZHRREN
BRER A HRG +FRMR - TR 2 B
Pie2 B2V R AR HIER -

REEFYI R F R EERE S RITE - AFE
MERH - 1TH B Rz ERAE T L
MEHEER-_E——E-A+MHEAEm-

29. EAREFERNABIE

RZE——FR-_ZE—ZFTF+-_A=+—H K
EEMVETMEREARERKAREE-

30. & EMEL

RZB——FRZZE-ZTF+_A=+—H &
SEUW AR E RS EHLRE-

31. R KAE A EH 2

AEE2REE R ERTORAG B 2 BERIKE
B ([BERAFE) RaslE B8 (18
e ) AKERBERABELEERS
B z5%ZE10%HKX (R FEERKEFE) A=
EEEFT _A-BENAXREBEZFHEEN
A2 maEestdl -BEMMEROTRBESR
BRI S B2 b R R -

GAEEZEWEHRERING ZEE AL 552,000
7T (=B —F4 : 40,0005 7T ) » BIAREER A
EIEERE - PA:t &

TE-—FFH SECEXARAA
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REMBRRMEE

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions:
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group had the following material transactions with related parties during

4

32. EABEALR S

the year:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Interest income on loan to a fellow subsidiary (Note 1) EFREZWEBRAFEZR 2
MEMA (HEED) 2,843 2,354
Management fee paid to a fellow subsidiary (Note 2) [ &K &2 AU ELZ
EIEE (KMis2) 20 132

Notes:

m Interest income was charged on outstanding balance during the year,
details are set out in Note 19.

2 Management fee was based on the terms mutually agreed by both
parties.

Balances:
Details of the balances with related parties at the end of reporting period
are set out in Notes 19, 23 and 24.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Note 11(a).

G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2011
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REMBRRME

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. T EffB A FH1E

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all EZER AL EHAMEBARENESHFRE
subsidiaries would be of excessive length and therefore the following list R K 8l TRAVNER =T ——F+=A
contains only the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 which principally =+ BHAEE (BN EEFEZTFEY

affected the results or assets of the Group. M@ AaE e
Proportion of
Class of Fully paid nominal value of
Place of share/  share capital/ paid-up capital/
Name of incorporation/ registered registered registered capital Principal
subsidiary operation  capital held capital held by the Company activities
PR,/
MR HEMER BERE ARREHERE
oy PN R £ AMEAR AMELAEEZEIL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE [

Grow Wealth Company Ltd Republic of Registered US$1 - 100% Property
(Business name: Liberia/Hong Kong EREL) 17T investment
Grow Wealth Property Pl B gp R MERE
Investment Limited) BE

(¥%478  Grow Wealth
Property Investment Limited )

G-Prop Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Investment and
N R 28T finance

RELRE

Minkind Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property
HEHRBR AT BB TR 28T investment
MERE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at the R ¥R&E EIR sk R R & BT BS [ - WM B R
end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting period. AIBTEADABRZERES-

—E-——FFH SELEBRLT 87
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REMBRRMEE

34. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

The Company's statement of financial position at 31 December 2011 and

34. Zﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁ’%ﬂﬁiﬂi&iz
BE

RAATANR—_BE——ER-_E—FBF+_A=1+—

2010 are as follows: BzHBikRmRERmT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Non-current asset REBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEARRE 61,914 154,260
Current assets REBEE
Loan to a fellow subsidiary BTRRMELABER 300,000 200,000
Prepayment and other receivables T8 RIE & B e U k1A 958 463
Time deposits and bank balances T BA7F B MR 1T 45 64 69,944 80,583
370,902 281,046
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to ultimate holding company REZEIERRBRIE 3 -
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries RERZKBARHE 87 149
Accruals and other payables FE 5T RIE & E B A 5RIE 352 359
442 508
Net current assets RBEEZFEE 370,460 280,538
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERREBAE 432,374 434,798
Equity attributable to owners of ALREEAELERAER
the Company
Share capital (Note 26) B (B EE26) 24,282 24,282
Share premium W1 5 B 351,638 351,638
Retained profits REHEN
— Proposed final dividend —BURAR B E 2,428 4,857
— Others —HAth 53,688 53,601
Total equity BAEREE 432,036 434,378
Non-current liability FIRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries V=L NGIE sl 338 420
432,374 434,798
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

34. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

(@

(b)

©

(d)

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(cont'd)

The HKICPA has issued the new HKFRSs which are effective for the
Company's financial year beginning 1 January 2011. The application
of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and
financial position for the current or prior accounting periods have

been prepared and presented.

The Company has undertaken to provide necessary financial
resources to support the future operations of the subsidiaries. The
Directors are of the opinion that the subsidiaries are financially

resourceful in settling obligations.

The carrying amount of the investment in subsidiaries is reduced
to their recoverable amounts which are determined by reference to
the estimation of future cash flows expected to be generated from

the respective subsidiaries.

Except for an amount due from subsidiary of HK$40,852,000
(2010: HK$36,507,000) is interest-bearing, the amounts due from
(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

repayment terms.

Profit of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to approximately HK$4,943,000 (2010: HK$3,665,000).

34. KRB BRI IRER

(@

(b)

©

(d)

ER e

EEGHMASERMIREARAE_Z
—— - A-BRRZMBFEELERZH
FEVBREEL BBV B RE
BRI EE A G RSB TS AR %
AR Z mE R 2577 NERAEMR
ERFE-

ARBEABREATHBER AZH
MERARZARRLE EFERA SHER
AAARHMBERBITAME

MBARKREREERSEETKRE S
BHOARUKEESEN2EZREKRE XMW
BRARZEFARAEREEE

B B 88 A ] R 3K A #040,852,0000%8 7T (=
T —Z 4 :36,507,000/8 ) 2 FIBE B
SNBARIRR (REBWBARIRIE) B
MR B R EE RN

HE_Z——F+_A=Z+—RHILEE"
NG

KRN TR A B4,943,0008 7T (ZE—F
£F 13,665,000/ 7T ) °

—E-——FFH SELEBRLT
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FEMBMRME

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have material events after the end of the reporting

period.

36. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 9 March 2012.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LEMBHE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
years is as follows:

AEBRERFZES EERBE/HMEWT:

For the year ended 31 December

HET-A=t-HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TAR TAT FET
Results ES
Revenue WA 8,410 8,483 9,099 6,790 2,812
Profit (loss) before tax from RERBREEKL
continuing operations BRRATRT (B8) 13,144 (879) 12,267 (5731) 15,297
Income tax (expense) credit N (AL KR (50) (980) 379 2,690 1334
Profit (loss) for the year from REERERELE
continuing operations EB 2B (BR) 13,094 (1,859) 12,646 (3,041) 16,631
Loss for the year from FERREEKRLEE
discontinued operations B EE - - - (1,813) (1,438)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable KRREEANEEAEE
to owners of the Company A (EE) 13,094 (1,859) 12,646 (4,854) 15,193
Earnings (loss) per share (HK cents) BREM(BE) (B)
Basic EX 0.54 (0.08) 0.56 (0.24) 1.49
Diluted #% 0.54 (0.08) 0.56 (0.24) 1.39
Final and interim dividends per share BRARARF RS
(HK cents) (L) 0.2 02 0.1 - -

Note: The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share is based on
the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company for the years
and on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the
relevant years. The diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculated by
adjusting the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company and
on the weighted average number of shares in issue for the effects of
all dilutive potential shares during the relevant years.

Ms: BREREMN (BE)DREEFERAQF
BEARARGRN (BB RERFECET
Bz mEFORBAE - SREFRF
(BER) HRBERABZARBHEE ARME
wmA (BR) REBFED BT mET
B RBUA R BR P B R ) BOE RUB F L AT
ﬁo

At 31 December

R+=A=+-8H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TAR TAT FET
Assets and liabilities BERER
Total assets BERE 488,686 487944 486,772 301,330 532,342
Total liabilities BfRAH (1,150) (1,992) (1,948) (3,952) (166,683)
Equity attributable to owners KRARHEEA
of the Company el R R 481536 485,952 484,824 297378 365,659
Net asset value per share attributable to -~ KA R AJE(E
owners of the Company (HK$) gREESE(BT) 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.18
Number of shares issued BETRHEA 2,428,255,008 2428255008 2428255008 2,028,255008 2,028,255,008

—E-——FFH SELEBRLT
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Schedule of Properties

Y S

Particulars of the Group's properties at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

o 36

1. 25 car parking spaces on
various floors and 5 adjoining
spaces at the 2nd and 4th floors
of the Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre,

No. 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BEET
78565

B RITAEEH O
g 225 E L K

24E AR 2 51 Bt 45 2= FE

2. 6 car parking spaces and
carport basement of
No. 9 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong
BERERR
ERKEPNR
GlE = Kb B (= 535

92 G-PROP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

wmF

Lot number Usage

1th B 4% 5% Rz

Certain parts or shares of Parking
and in the Remaining Portion B
of Inland Lot No. 2818,

The Remaining Portion of

Section D of Inland Lot No. 2818,

The Remaining Portion of

Section F of Inland Lot

No. 2817 and Section M of

Inland Lot No. 2817

A ER F28185% #RER

M ER 5281857 DER BRER

M3 ER 8281757 FER A ER A %

MR EE28175EMER 2 B T DK

(K]

Certain parts or shares of and in
Section A of Marine Lot No. 101,
Section B of Marine Lot No. 101,

Parking
B

The Remaining Portion of Section C
of Marine Lot No. 10T,

The Remaining Portion of Marine
Lot No. 101, The Remaining Portion
of Section A of Marine Lot No. 102,
Section C of Marine Lot No. 103
and The Remaining Portion of
Inland Lot No. 514

BB E1015RAR
BEHERFE1015%BE

B ER 1015 CRRERER »
BEHERFE101RERE

5 ER BB 1025R AR BRER -
Y ER FE1035% CER A K

iR E51458 R 2 B THB 93K
8
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Category of
the lease

term

GERGE Y

Long
= H

Long
£

FEER_ZE——FT_A=+T—H2WEFE

Group's
interest
&
Frit s

100%

100%
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